# Yulecart Memorial Hall



23234 Yulecart Memorial Hall 0303

#### Location

Dartmoor-Hamilton Road YULECART, Southern Grampians Shire

## Municipality

SOUTHERN GRAMPIANS SHIRE

#### Level of significance

-

## **Heritage Listing**

Vic. War Heritage Inventory

#### Statement of Significance

Last updated on - December 1, 2003

What is significant?

The Yulecart Memorial Hall, located on Dartmoor - Hamilton Road, Yulecart is a small conventional stone hall with a corrugated iron gabled roof. Other structures within the reserve include a War Memorial to those who served in World War One and Two, three tennis courts and a football oval with two corrugated iron sheds. The northern side of the oval is planted with a row of mature cypress trees (now incomplete). The hall and reserve were developed in response to the surge in population caused by Closer Settlement in the early part of the twentieth century. The hall was built by volunteer labour, recycling stone from nearby Strathkellar Homestead. The complex represents a strong sense of determination amongst settler families in the district. Many of the descendents continue to live in the area. The complex is relatively intact and retains a good degree of integrity.

#### How is it significant?

The Yulecart Memorial Hall and reserve is of historical and social significance to Southern Grampians Shire.

Why is it significant?

The Yulecart Memorial Hall and reserve is of historical significance for marking a major chapter in closer settlement. It is of social significance as an example of cooperation for community self-improvement and as a continuing focus for that community. The oval is historically significant as a central meeting place and social institution for many years. The cypress represent a previous practice, when the whole of the oval was commonly planted with cypress or pines at the time it was constructed.

Heritage Southern Grampians - Southern Grampians Shire Heritage Study, Timothy Hubbard

Study/Consultant P/L, Annabel Neylon, 2002;

Heritage Act Categories

Registered place,

Hermes Number 125523

**Property Number** 

## **Physical Conditions**

The bluestone hall and war memorial are in good condition.

## **Physical Description 1**

The Yulecart Memorial Hall is a small dressed bluestone hall, with a gabled roof in corrugated iron. It assumes a traditional and conservative form. The south facing facade contains no windows, but has large timber doors opening outwards. The gable point has a wooden finial, and the date 1924 appears on a cement tablet immediately below the gable. The west wall has three two-paned double sash timber windows, with wall ventilators. Originally symmetrical, the hall has been altered on the east side, by the addition of a 1970s cement block structure. A second unsympathetic extension in cement block and aluminium sheeting has been added at the rear at a similar time.

A timber and wire fence, with a wrought iron and wire garden gate bounds the hall on the south side, facing the Dartmoor-Hamilton road. Inside the fence, adjacent to the hall is a war memorial.

The memorial, built of dressed bluestone blocks, takes the form of a flat topped pyramid, approximately 1.5 metres high. A bronze plaque at the base of the structures states, 'Erected in the memory of Yulecart citizens who made the supreme sacrifice in World Wars I and II.' Small bronze plaques commemorating the fallen have been attached to the sides of the pyramid.

The hall and war memorial are located within a large reserve adjoining Muddy Creek. The sporting complex comprises three tennis courts and a football oval with two corrugated iron sheds. The northern side of the oval is planted with a row of mature cypress trees (now incomplete). The oval has been constructed by cutting and filling the sloping land beside the creek, which must have entailed an enormous amount of earth-moving. On the north side of the oval, the remains of an boundary planting of Cupressus macrocarpa (Monteray cypress) survive. These were probably planted at the same time the oval was constructed, and only four remain now.

#### **Historical Australian Themes**

Theme 4: Building settlements, towns and cities 4.5 Making settlements to serve rural Australia

Theme 8: Developing Australia's cultural life

8.1 Organising recreation

8.1.1 Playing and watching organised sports

8.1.3 Developing public parks and gardens

8.5 Forming associations8.5.4 Pursuing common leisure interests8.8 Remembering the fallen8.14 Living in the country and rural settlements

#### **Usage/Former Usage**

Public hall Sporting clubs Public hall Sporting clubs War memorial

## Integrity

Fair

## **Physical Description 2**

John Habel, Yulecart resident

#### **Veterans Description for Public**

The Yulecart Memorial Hall is located inside a large reserve adjoining Muddy Creek on Dartmoor - Hamilton Road. The hall was established on the same site as the Yulecart school, which prior to 1900 had never had more than twenty children. The enrolment at the Yulecart School increased in the new century to about seventy, and in 1913, a committee was established to collect funds to build a new hall. Committee members included leading residents J. Simpson, W. Loats, W. H. Francis and J. G. Habel. Tenders were called for the construction of the hall in July 1914, but the plans were suspended on the outbreak of the war and did not progress until the 1920s. It was finally opened in September 1924.

The reserve also includes a sporting complex of three tennis courts and a football oval with two corrugated iron sheds. The northern side of the football oval is planted with a row of mature cypress trees (now incomplete). These were probably planted at the same time the oval was constructed only four remain now.

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/